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1. Introduction 
 
No. 29 is an attached dwellinghouse fronting The Terrace adjacent to the banks of the River Thames 
in Barnes. The existing house is in poor state of repair and due a much-needed refurbishment and 
upgrade to allow it be used as a family home for many more years. 
 
No 29 is a bit of an anomaly on The Terrace as it is a modern property enveloped within a run of 
dense fabric of very old properties, many with historical significance. Unlike these properties it is set 
back from the road and whilst it is ‘attached’ to No. 30 on the right when looking from the front, it is 
only ‘link attached’ to No. 28 via the garage. 
 
Proposed are a series of extensions and alterations which look to upgrade the existing property in a 
sensitive way. 
 
2. Conservation Area 
 
No 29 is sited within Barnes Green Conservation Area 1. It is part of the original conservation area 
which was designated in 1969. 
 
According to the conservation area statement: 
 
The Terrace, to the west, runs parallel to the Thames and has a number of 18th and 19th century 
buildings of exceptional quality. 
 
It sights ‘preservation, enhancement and reinstatement of architectural quality and unity’ as an 
opportunity for enhancement of the area. 
 
The conservation area appraisal goes into great detail about the houses and buildings along this 
stretch of the river, but notably does not mention No 29. 
 
3. History of the Property 
 
We have managed to establish some of the history of the property utilising local maps, online library 
collections and photographs found online. It is clear that the property standing at No. 29 is not the 
original property and was a replacement built c. 1960. 
 
Since at least c.1870 a house stood on the plot, plans of this are available on Richmond’s local 
studies library collection and photographs found online (screenshots below). 

 
An application from 1929 calls the house Holly Lodge, and was an application to convert it to flats 
(disallowed). The name Holly Lodge is also used in an 1891 application relating to drainage. 
 



 

The relationship with No. 30 has always been complicated, as can be seen in the early OS maps and 
planning drawings. 
 

OS map from 1895 
Source: National Library of Scotland 

We believe this picture to show the original house on the right hand side (no date) 
Source: Barnes and Mortlake history Society 

 



 

 
 

 
Original house plans from a planning application in 1898 

Source: Richmond Libraries online Collection Record number 1535515 
 
 

 
 



 

 
In 1940 the house is still shown on OS maps, but in 1951 the plot is vacant. This is backed up by 
aerial footage from 1946. It is not known why this original house has been demolished. It could have 
been a serious event such as a fire. 
 
 

 
 

Aerial View from 1946 showing vacant plot 
Source: National Library of Scotland 

 
 
There is a record for the planning application for a new build house at No. 29 in 1958 but no 
drawings are available online. It is then shown on OS maps from 1968. 
 
We can therefore establish that the house standing on the plot today was built c. 1960, but has had 
alterations since as noted below. 



 

 
 

OS map from 1968 
Source: National Library of Scotland 

 
 
 
The first planning application recorded on the Richmond website for No. 29 is from 1965 (formation 
of vehicular access) and 1968 (single storey playroom addition). No are drawings available for these.  
 
In 1976 permission was received for ‘single-storey rear extension to kitchen’. 
 
In 1976 permission was also granted for ‘Erection of first floor bedroom and bathroom extensions 
over existing single storey kitchen at No. 30.’  
 
Again no drawings are given but these may well be the extensions to the front and side/rear that fill 
the gap with No. 30.  

 
Since then, there have been no further applications. 
 
From photos, it is clear that the flying freehold aspect of the property (which sits over part of No. 30) 
is not original and was constructed after the replacement house, but there is no date given to these 
photos. 
 
 
 



 

 
The replacement house can be seen in this photograph (undated) 

Source: Barnes and Mortlake history Society 
 
  



 

4. Proposals 

 
Proposed street frontage 

 
 
The proposals look to create a more sensitive response to the street. The lead canopy, timber 
detailing, painted timber windows, timber front door with surround, and metal railings are seen as 
appropriate to the location and will elevate the frontage of the house whilst providing a practical 
cover to the front entrances for the occupants. 
 
The single storey extensions proposed to the rear are in keeping with the property and will have 
limited, if any, impact on the neighbouring properties. 
 
Furthermore, the relationship with the street is currently hindered by the low wall sited on the front 
boundary. The replacement wall with metal railings is intended to homogenize this relationship and 
allow the house to contribute positively again. 


